Cherwell District Council

Executive

Minutes of a meeting of the Executive held at Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 26 July 2011 at 5.30 pm

Present: Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman)

Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ken Atack Councillor Norman Bolster Councillor John Donaldson Councillor Michael Gibbard Councillor James Macnamara

Councillor Nigel Morris

Also Councillor Leslie F Sibley Present: Councillor Tim Emptage

Councillor Kieron Mallon

Apologies Councillor D M Pickford for Councillor Nicholas Turner

absence:

Officers: Sue Smith, Chief Executive

Ian Davies, Strategic Director Environment & community

Chris Rothwell, Head of Safer Communities, Urban & Rural Services

Karen Muir, Corporate System Accountant

Nigel Bell, Team Leader - Planning and Litigation / Interim Monitoring Officer

Natasha Clark, Senior Democratic and Scrutiny Officer

27 **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest.

28 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting

The Chairman reported that Councillor Sibley, Leader of the Opposition, would be submitting a petition on behalf of residents and businesses of Banbury regarding evening and bank holiday parking charges. The petition would be submitted at agenda item 4, Car Park Provision and Charges.

29 Car Park Provision and Charges

The Strategic Director Environment and Community submitted a report which sought consideration of the recommendations of the joint meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board regarding car park provision and charges.

Councillor Kieron Mallon, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, presented the recommendations of the Joint Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board. The meeting had noted that a review had been due to take place in the autumn and had commended the Executive for recommending that the scrutiny committees undertake an early review of the revised parking charges in light of public concern and interest. Councillor Mallon explained that the recommendations would benefit residents in the district whilst ensuring that any future loss in income could be accommodated.

The Deputy Leader of the Council requested that all officers who had been involved in the work relating to car parking charges be thanked for their hard work. He paid particular thanks to staff in Parking Services and Customer Services for their hard work in dealing with the queries and calls in relation to parking charges.

Councillor Les Sibley, Leader of the Labour Group, presented a petition to the Executive on behalf of residents and businesses in Banbury opposing evening and Bank Holiday charges. He also addressed the Executive regarding the proposals from the Joint Scrutiny meeting

Councillor Tim Emptage, Leader of the Liberal Democrats, addressed the Executive commending their decision to review car parking charges and regarding the proposals from the Joint Scrutiny meeting.

The Executive noted that whilst they were in agreement about adjusting parking charges and policies, the correct legal processes would need to be followed and no changes could be implemented until such time as these were complete and therefore Excess Charge Notices would continue to be issued. Members also noted that no mistakes had been made in applying Excess Charge Notices since the implementation of the revised parking charges as the charge changes had been correctly introduced.

Resolved

- (1) That the following recommendations of the Joint Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board be endorsed:
 - That there is a need to make some adjustments to the new car parking charges and policies in recognition of concerns raised by Councillors and the public.
 - That any adjustments must try to balance real benefit to car park users and town traders with the accepted effects on the Council's limited and reducing finances.

- That the current charges for evening parking be changed to charging to 1900hrs only on current hourly tariffs and free thereafter.
- That there should be free parking for blue badge holders in designated disabled spaces but blue badge holders should be charged in all general parking spaces.
- That there should be a 10 minute maximum period of grace for parking period expiry and non purchase of tickets.
- That the discount for early payment of excess charge notices within 14 days be increased to 50% for all contraventions.
- To note the withdrawal of the current £16 administration charge for appeals which are upheld but where the ECN was issued correctly.
- That the effects of the redevelopment of Bicester Town Centre warrant an adjustment to the current charging regime until the new development is complete (anticipated summer 2013) by reducing the current charges by 10p per hour.
- That officers determine the earliest implementation of the changes agreed by the Executive according to the appropriate legal processes.
- That a detailed communications plan be compiled to signify these changes which takes into account the lessons learnt from the April changes.
- That the loss of income of the above (estimated to be £93,000 per annum) be met from the additional income and lower cost arising from the transfer of some treasury management functions in house; and the fixed term Bicester loss of income (estimated to be £80,000 per annum over two years) from the additional interest secured from the later £10m investment of the Council's contribution to the Bicester Town Centre Redevelopment Scheme due to the delay in its start.
- (2) That Sunday and Bank Holiday parking be charged at £1 for all day and that parking on Good Friday, Easter Sunday, Christmas Day, and Boxing Day remain free.

Reasons

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board have recognised the need to make some adjustments to the new car parking charges and policies in light of the concerns expressed by members and the public to the car parking charging changes introduced in April. This does acknowledge that any adjustments must balance real benefit to car park users and town traders with the accepted effects on the Council's limited and reducing finances.

Options

Option One Agree the recommendations of the joint scrutiny

meeting.

Option TwoNot accept the recommendations of the joint scrutiny

meeting and to retain the current charging

arrangements.

Option Three Agree in part the recommendation of the joint

scrutiny meeting or other changes to current

charging arrangements.

30 ICT Service Development

The Strategic Director Environment and Community submitted a report which sought consideration of the principles of a shared ICT service with South Northamptonshire Council.

Resolved

- (1) That a shared ICT service with South Northamptonshire Council be agreed in principle.
- (2) That a full business case for such a proposal to include estimated costs, benefits and risks prior to final commitment be received.
- (3) That external validation and assurance of the technical and service proposals assuming a clear conclusion in the Business Case to progress to a shared service in some form be supported.
- (4) That funding from the Council's Corporate ICT Reserve of up to £20,000 for this external validation and assurance be approved.

Reasons

A shared ICT service has the potential to offer significant benefits, both financial and through service support, to both councils. However, this needs a clear business case with risk factors evaluated and external validation.

Options

Option One To explore the benefits, estimated costs and risks of

a shared ICT service.

Option TwoTo retain separate ICT services other than those

already programmed in a shared way

The meeting ended at	6.25	pm
----------------------	------	----

Chairman:

Date: